
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

3 April 2018

Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

A meeting of the Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Wednesday, 11 April 2018 at 10.00 am in Committee Room One, County Offices, 
Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the transaction of the business set out on the attached 
Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Richard Wills
Head of Paid Service

Membership of the Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee (11 
Members of the Council)

Councillors C E H Marfleet (Chairman), Mrs E J Sneath (Vice-Chairman), M T Fido, 
R J Kendrick, P M Key, Mrs J E Killey, Mrs C J Lawton, A P Maughan, C E Reid, 
M A Whittington and 1 Conservative Vacancy

Public Document Pack





ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA
WEDNESDAY, 11 APRIL 2018

Item Title Pages 

1 Apologies for Absence/Replacement Councillors 

2 Declarations of Councillors' Interests 

3 Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 February 
2018 

5 - 10

4 Announcements by the Chairman, Executive Councillor and 
Lead Officer 

~

5 Lincolnshire's Managed Care Network for Mental Health 
(To receive a report by Jane Marshall (Director of Strategy and 
Performance (Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust)) 
and Lorraine Graves, (General Manager, Specialist Adult 
Services (Lincolnshire County Council)), which provides a status 
report detailing the latest developments in the use of the Mental 
Health Promotion Funded Managed Care Network)

11 - 20

6 Shared Lives Re-procurement 
(To receive a report by Carl Miller (Commercial and Procurement 
Manager), which invites the Committee to consider a report on 
the Shared Lives Service Re-procurement, which is due to be 
considered by the Executive Councillor between 13 and 17 April 
2018.  The views of the Committee will be reported to the 
Executive Councillor, as part of her consideration of this item)

To Follow

7 Adult Care and Community Wellbeing Quarter 3 2017/18 
Performance 
(To receive a report by Theo Jarratt (County Manager, 
Performance Quality and Information), which presents 
performance against Council Business Plan targets for the 
Directorate as at the end of Quarter 3 2017/18)

21 - 30

8 NHS Health Checks Re-procurement 
(To receive a report by Philip Garner (Health Improvement 
Project Manager and Carl Miller, Commercial and Procurement 
Manager), which invites the Committee to consider a proposed 
decision on the re-procurement of the NHS Health Checks 
Programme, which is due to be considered by the Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services between 
13 – 17 April 2018.  The views of the Committee will be reported 
to the Executive Councillor as part of her consideration of this 
item)

31 - 62



9 Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 
(To receive a report by Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), 
which enables the Committee to consider its work programme)

63 - 70

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Cheryl Hall

Direct Dial 01522 552113

E Mail Address cheryl.hall@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


1

ADULTS AND COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14 FEBRUARY 2018

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR C E H MARFLEET (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors Mrs E J Sneath (Vice-Chairman), M T Fido, R J Kendrick, Mrs J E Killey, 
Mrs C J Lawton, A P Maughan, C E Reid and M A Whittington

Councillor Mrs P A Bradwell (Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and 
Children's Services) was also in attendance.  

Officers in attendance:-

Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), Alina Hackney (Senior Strategic Commercial 
and Procurement Manager), Justin Hackney (Assistant Director Specialist Adult 
Services), Steve Houchin (Head of Finance (Adult Care)), Carolyn Nice (Assistant 
Director, Adult Frailty & Long Term Conditions), Melanie Weatherley (Chair of 
Lincolnshire Care Association (LinCA)) and Catherine Wilman (Democratic Services 
Officer).

44    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R J Kendrick.

The Chief Executive reported that having received a notice under Regulation 13 of 
the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, he had 
appointed Councillor S P Roe as a replacement member of the Committee in place of 
Councillor R J Kendrick for this meeting only.

45    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

No interests were declared.

46    MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ADULTS AND COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON 10 JANUARY 2018

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018, were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

47    CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman referred to the fact that the Committee would ordinarily be expecting a 
report on Quarter 3 performance for Adult Care and Community Wellbeing.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14 FEBRUARY 2018

However, owing to the extent of the two main business items on the agenda, 
consideration of performance had been deferred to the next meeting on 11 April 
2018. 

48    RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING CARE FEE LEVELS WITHIN ADULT 
SOCIAL CARE

The Committee considered a report on residential and nursing care fee levels within 
Adult Social Care, on which the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and 
Children's Services was due to make a decision on 22 February 2018.  The report 
was jointly presented by the following officers:

 Assistant Director of Adult Frailty and Long Terms Conditions
 Assistant Director of Specialist Adult Services
 Head of Finance, Adult Care and Community Wellbeing
 Senior Strategic Commercial and Procurement Manager

Melanie Weatherley, the Chair of the Lincolnshire Care Association, was also present 
for the item, to provide the perspective of the representative association of residential 
and nursing care home providers.  

The Committee was advised that its agreed comments would be passed to the 
Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services prior her making 
the decision on 22 February 2018.

The focus of the report was the rationale for the calculation of the 'usual cost' for 
three levels of service: residential, nursing and high dependency across all types of 
need (older people, physical disability, learning disability and mental health).  These 
costs had last been determined in 2015 for three financial years (2015/16, 2016/17 
and 2017/18), and the proposal was for the usual costs again to be approved for the 
subsequent three financial years: 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21. 

The Committee was advised that the previous exercise in 2014/15 had failed to 
provide sufficient clarity on the cost of Learning Disability placements and therefore 
the usual cost had been based upon the baseline costs for Adult Frailty and Long 
Term Conditions. To address this, a separate programme of activity had been carried 
out on the Learning Disability provider market, which had led the creation of a 
proposed new cost model as well as a distinct set of usual costs for Learning 
Disability services. 
 
The Committee was also advised of the importance of due process and the 
reasonableness and logic underpinning the usual cost. The report detailed the 
process; who had been involved; and the full details of consultation process. Overall, 
48% of the care homes had replied to the consultation exercise.    

The report contained a full explanation of the model, which had been constructed to 
develop the usual costs, which had drawn on both national and local data.

Page 6



3
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14 FEBRUARY 2018

The Committee was also advised of the contract changes, which were proposed as 
part of the decision.     

After consideration of the presentation from the officers, the Chair of the Lincolnshire 
Care Association stated that the consultation exercise had been constructive, and 
there was an understanding of the financial pressures that applied to the County 
Council.  Overall, the levels of fees proposed represented a 'fair' price.

Although not part of the proposed decision, reference was made to NHS funded 
nursing care, which was paid to providers by clinical commissioning groups in 
accordance with a national tariff.  In this regard reports by accountants (Mazar's) on 
behalf the Department of Health had led to determinations on the level of NHS 
funded nursing care.  Overall the level of nursing costs for nursing homes was not 
sustainable.  There were essentially two options available to providers: deregistration 
of nursing care beds; or continue to meet the shortfall in funded nursing care.  The 
latter option was not sustainable to many providers.   In addition, the high costs of 
agency nursing and the difficulties of recruiting nurses in Lincolnshire were cited as 
contributory factors.  

The Committee explored this topic further and was advised that the approach of the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) to nursing care was important.  The CQC did not 
define the term 'available' nurse.  Where large providers operated in large premises it 
would be easier to have a nurse available on site.  For smaller providers the costs 
would be particularly high.  The roles of the executive nurses at the clinical 
commissioning groups were also cited as a factor.  They held the legal responsibility 
for nursing provision and NHS funded nursing care was a separate element to the 
Council-paid fees.

In addition to the above, members of the Committee also raised the following issues:

 The proposed level of fees included the financial year 2020/21, and hitherto 
there had been no indication of the continuation of the Better Care Fund into 
this financial year.  The Committee was advised that this level of uncertainty 
applied to all local authorities, who currently relied on the Better Care Fund.  A 
green paper on the funding of adult social care was expected to be issued by 
the Government in September 2018.  

 The staffing ratios specified in the levels of fees for learning disability would be 
determined by an individual's level of need.  If the level of need increased or 
decreased the agreed staffing ratio could also change. 

 Reference was made to Continuing Health Care, funded by the NHS, which 
was not part of the proposal in the report, and the approach of the local clinical 
commissioning groups to this.  

 Generally information on the level of rates charged by each provider would be 
commercially sensitive, but the local authority could provide advice at the time 
of the placement on the fees charged by specific providers.

 The Lincolnshire Care Association represented about 60% of the residential 
and nursing care beds available in Lincolnshire.  Homes which were part of a 
national chain did not generally join local associations, as they tended to be 
members of Care England.  

Page 7



4
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14 FEBRUARY 2018

The Committee agreed to support the five recommendations in the report to the 
Executive Councillor and agreed to make additional comments as set out in part 2 of 
the resolution.

RESOLVED

1. That the recommendations to the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, 
Health and Children's Services on residential and nursing care fee levels 
within Adult Social Care be supported;

2. That the following additional comments to be passed to the Executive 
Councillor in relation to this item: 

"The Committee recorded its gratitude for the work undertaken in the 
preparation of the proposed level of fees, including the required detailed 
calculations to support the proposals.  The Committee also welcomed 
the extent of the engagement of residential and nursing care providers 
in the consultation, in particular the Lincolnshire Care Association 
(LinCA), who was represented at the meeting by their Chair.

"Prior to the Committee reaching its conclusion, particular consideration 
was given to the impact of nursing costs on providers.  The Committee 
was advised by the Chair of LinCA that the current position was not 
sustainable in the long term for many providers, and some providers 
had already deregistered nursing care beds, rather than cover the 
shortfall in their costs.  The shortage of nurses in Lincolnshire and the 
high costs of agency nurses were also cited.  Alternative solutions are 
being explored with clinical commissioning groups and other health 
colleagues.  An example is considering how nursing provision could be 
delivered in order to meet the requirement of an 'available' nurse, a 
term which is not defined by the Care Quality Commission.  The 
Committee was advised that the executive nurses in clinical 
commissioning groups hold the legal responsibility for nursing provision 
and NHS funded nursing care is an addition to the Council-paid fees."  

3. That the Health and Wellbeing Board be requested to consider how clinical 
commissioning groups could be engaged on developing available nursing 
provision in relation to the issues set out in (2) above; and the Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire be advised of this Committee's 
consideration of this topic.   

49    REPORT BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE 
OMBUDSMAN

Consideration was given to a report by the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman, which would be considered by the Executive at its meeting on 6 March 
2018.  Comments agreed by the Committee would be passed to the Executive as 
part of its consideration of the item.

Page 8



5
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14 FEBRUARY 2018

The Committee was advised that the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman had issued the report following an allegation of maladministration on the 
part of the Council in the exercise of its adult social care function.  The Ombudsman 
had concluded that the Council had been guilty of maladministration and that this had 
caused injustice to the complainant.  The Ombudsman had issued a public report, 
which included recommendations that he considered would be necessary to remedy 
the injustice in this particular case and more widely.  The Ombudsman's 
Recommendations were detailed in the report and the actions that the Council had 
either taken or proposed to take in addressing those recommendations. 
 

Following questions from members of the Committee, these points were clarified:

 A full apology had been issued by the Council in advance of the 
Ombudsman's full investigation, and the complaint related to events in 2016.

 The complainant had followed due process, initially using Council's own 
complaints procedure, before the complainant had escalated the complaint to 
the Ombudsman.

 Following the complaint, the relevant members of staff had received further 
training, with an emphasis on providing families the correct information as 
early as possible.  

 Further consideration would be given to legal advice and wider implications in 
the Ombudsman's report, and consideration of this was requested by the 
Committee.  

The Committee agreed to support the six recommendations to the Executive and 
requested that it considers the full review of the legal, financial and operational 
implications of the recommendations in paragraph 60 of the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman's report.

RESOLVED

1. That the recommendations to the Executive, as set out in the report, be 
supported;

2. That the Committee's request to consider the full review of the legal, 
financial and operational implications of the recommendations in paragraph 
60 of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman's report be 
passed to the Executive.

50    LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB GROUP 
UPDATE

The Committee considered the minutes from the meeting of the Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub Group held on 10 January 2018.

It was reported that the Thematic Review of Financial Exploitation which was the 
result of a Serious Case Review by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board and 
the Board's Peer Challenge Report from the Local Government Association and the 

Page 9



6
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14 FEBRUARY 2018

Response were two topics highlighted at the Sub Group meeting which could come 
to the Adults and Community Wellbeing Committee at a future meeting.

Following discussion, it was decided that the Sub Group should consider these 
issues in the first instance and provide an update to the Committee, as part of the 
regular submission of the Sub Group's minutes.

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub 
Group be received.  

51    ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME

A report was considered which provided an opportunity for the Committee to look at 
its work programme for forthcoming meetings.

It was noted that a pre-decision scrutiny item Shared Lives Procurement had been 
added to the agenda for the meeting on 11 April 2018, since the publication of the 
agenda.

There was discussion around the issues of community wellbeing, social isolation and 
extra-care housing.  It was agreed that these issues could be discussed at the 
meeting on 4 July 2018 which currently had no items listed.  It was also suggested 
that the meeting could be held in Skegness, where there were some very good 
examples of extra care housing which the Committee could visit.

There was also a suggestion, that the community issues mentioned could form the 
work of a Task and Finish Group, or be the topic of a future Scrutiny Panel review.

RESOLVED

That the Committee's Work Programme and the changes made therein be 
noted.

52    INFORMATION ITEMS

The reports on Supported Housing and Extra Care Housing had been circulated with 
the agenda for information only.  

RESOLVED

1. That the report on Supported Housing be noted.

2. That the report on Extra Care Housing be noted.

The meeting closed at 12.05 pm.

Page 10



 

 

 
 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod, Executive Director of Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing (Lincolnshire County Council) and 

Jane Marshall, Director of Strategy and Performance (Lincolnshire 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust) 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 April 2018 

Subject: 
Lincolnshire's Managed Care Network for Mental 
Health 

 

Summary:  
 

This item provides a status report detailing the latest developments in the use of 
the Mental Health Promotion Funded Managed Care Network (MCN). The 
network was set up in response to reductions in the Adult Social Care budget. 
The aim of the network is to “improve people’s mental health and quality of life by 
helping them to find personally relevant, safe and effective support”. 
  
 

Actions Required:  

To consider and comment on the information presented. 
 

 
 

1. Background 
 

The Managed Care Network is part of the Mental Illness Prevention Strategy and 
aims to ‘improve people’s mental health and quality of life by helping them to find 
personally relevant, safe and effective support’. A network of social enterprises, 
voluntary sector organisations and self-help groups are funded to provide a wide 
range of services to vulnerable individuals in the community. 
 
Funded by Lincolnshire County Council using the Section 75 partnership 
agreement since 2012; Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (LPFT) 
“micro-commissions” these activities using the Mental Health Promotion Fund.  
This has run very successfully over the last six years and has academically 
evaluated very positively in terms of both the social and financial return on 
investment (Thomson, 2015). 
 
Funding decisions are made on an annual basis; the funding is non-recurrent 
(although it has been allocated successfully each year since inception).   
 
Tables showing the number of members, new members and projects supported 
over the six years are shown below. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
Table 1 Managed Care Network Members 
 

 Wave 1 Wave 2 Wave 3 Wave 4 Wave 5 Wave 6 Wave 7 

Full Members (Organisations 
currently receiving an 
investment) 

30 25 33 44 42 46 25 

New Full Members 30 19 15 8 9 12 4 

 
Table 2 Managed Care Network Projects and Beneficiaries 
 

 Wave 1 Wave 2 Wave 3 Wave 4 Wave 5  Wave 6 Wave 7 

Number of projects 32 24 33 47 45 46 28 

New projects 32 24 15 14 9 19 8 

Number of sites 36 25 83 73 56 64 35 

Countywide projects 7 3 14 17 8 7 1 

Contracts end Jun - 
Oct 

2013 

Apr - 
Jun 

2014 

Oct - 
Dec 
2014 

Sept 
 2015 

Sept 
2016 

Sept 
2017 

Sept 
2018 

Estimated number of direct 
beneficiaries  

1700 800 1800 2875 2393 2784 2669 

 
 
Table 3 Procurement and Applications for Investment 
 

 Wave 1 Wave 2 Wave 3 Wave 4 Wave 5 Wave 6 Wave 7 

Procurement 
began 

Jan 2012 Oct 2012 Mar 2013 Apr 2014 Apr 2015 April 2016 April 2017 

First Payments June 2012 Apr 2013 Oct 2013 Oct 2014 Oct 2015 Sept 2016 Sept 2017 

Value of 
Distributable 
Fund 

£345,000 £170,000 £323,000 £420,000 £320,600 £330,000 £350,000 

Total funding 
applied for  

£1,200,000 £494,000 £752,000 £1,446,652 £1,300,000 £1,266,442 £1,250,991 

Number of 
applications 

68 38 47 85 77 77 83 

New applicants 61 24 23 20 9 19 20 

Number of 
successful 
applications  

30 25 33 47 45 46 28 

Application 
success rate * 

44% 56% 70% 55% 58% 60% 34% 

 
* Application success rate is defined as the proportion of applicants who received all or part 
of the investment applied for. It was decided that for wave 7, all projects would be awarded the full 
amount they applied for except for projects that had evidenced in previous waves that they could 

Page 12



 

 

deliver their proposed activities for less. By awarding the full amount applied for to the majority of 
successful projects this allowed for less projects to be funded.    

 
Lincolnshire County Council and LPFT have just worked together on the allocation 
of wave 7 of the Mental Health Promotion Fund (year 6 of delivery) and this report 
updates on the latest position. 
 
1.2 Wave 7 of the Mental Health Promotion Fund (1 October 2017 – 

30 September 2018)  
 
For wave 7, 82 expressions of interest were received totaling £1.2million from a 
wide range of groups and localities.  In 2017/18 the total fund to be allocated was 
£350,000; £50,000 of which must be spent on projects in support of people living 
with Dementia.   The process for allocating the fund involved a panel assessment 
against the funding criteria.  LPFT offers feedback and support to the applicants 
who were unsuccessful as we want to help ensure that they are able to continue 
their work. 
 
Part of the vision is for members to become self-sustaining by exploiting avenues 
for attracting other routes of funding (for example through charitable status) over 
time.   
 
Essentially the Mental Health Promotion Fund is designed to build community 
capacity and capability through “seed funding”.  Some projects that had been 
funded since the inception of the fund have therefore not received ongoing support 
and projects have been encouraged to become self-sustaining.   
 
We encourage projects that no longer receive funding through the Mental Health 
Promotion Fund to remain part of the Managed Care Network so that they can 
continue to play an active role in the community support available, and we offer our 
congratulations to those projects which were successful on this occasion. 
 
Application and funding processes 
  
Applicants demonstrate through their application that they: 
 
 Have at least 3 non-related Directors on their board 
 Have a joint signatory business bank account for the specific use of the 

project/organisation  
 Are provided by small scale, local groups and organisations, as well as larger 

organisations linked in with a wider network of services, help and support.  
 Are based on evidence of what works, as well as new ideas that have not been 

tested before  
 Can be up and running quickly.  
 Can run for between 6 to 12 months.  
 Focus on how they will make a positive difference for people, not just on the 

numbers of people who will be helped.  
 Can demonstrate a realistic approach to delivery of outcomes 
 

Page 13



 

 

The fund does not cover:  Fundraising activity; political or religious activities; a 
project or activity that provides services already provided by a public body; the 
purchase of alcohol; recoverable VAT or vehicles.  In addition there is a reluctance 
to fund recurrent posts with what is essentially non-recurrent funding. 
 
Funding decisions 
The panel is made up of representation from the local authority, LPFT and patient 
governors.  The panel scores each application based on four elements: 
 

 Location in areas of known strategic health and social care identified need 

 Alignment with the requirements of the grant funding contract as listed above 

 Quality of provision, impact on beneficiaries (measurable outcomes 
achievable/realistic) 

 Sustainability (cannot become a funding reliant entity, must be able to 
demonstrate an ability use this fund to prove outcomes and then source 
alternative funding) 

 
In 2017/18 we introduced some new projects and better coverage of the East 
Coast. 
 
The full list of Wave 7 recipients is given in the table below. 
 
Table 4 List of Wave 7 Managed Care Network projects 

Organisation name Project title 
Total 

investment 
awarded 

Acts Trust The Shed, Lincoln     £3,500 

Age UK Boston and South Holland 
Movement for Life and 
Dementia 

    £1,142 

The Askefield Project Ltd Farm Therapy at Askefield   £23,342 

Boston Body Hub  Active 8+   £20,000 

Boston & District Branch of Cruse 
Bereavement Care 

Lincolnshire East 
Bereavement and Loss 
Support Project 

    £6,637 

Cruse Bereavement Care Lincoln Branch     £7,000 

Dementia Support South Lincs Square Hole Club   £16,840 

Foxdale Equine Assisted Learning Quiet Reflections & Feel Free     £7,400 

Lincolnshire ADHD Support Services Supporting Adults with ADHD     £7,544 

Lincoln City FC Sport and Education 
Trust 

Impact your Mind   £17,259 

Louth Men's Shed Louth Men's Shed     £3,000 

Louth Mindfulness Go Forward project   £10,597 

Lincolnshire Rural Support Network LRSN     £5,900 

Magna Vitae Unordinary Ensemble   £25,000 

New Life Community Church Spilsby Mental Health Promotion   £12,000 

Now Unlimited 
Living Mindfully, Spalding and 
Boston 

    £8,054 

Page 14



 

 

Organisation name Project title 
Total 

investment 
awarded 

Now Unlimited 
Skegness Mental Health 
Champions 

    £8,133 

Cambridgeshire, Peterborough and 
South Lincolnshire Mind 

Mental Health Wellbeing 
Service 

  £12,500 

PA Housing IMPACT    £15,500 

Sage Gardener CIC Friendship with Nature   £13,673 

Scotter Forward 
Dementia and friends 
activities in Scotter 

    £1,000 

Shine Lincolnshire Ltd Shine Network   £27,000 

Shine Lincolnshire Ltd Integration Hubs   £18,000 

Startafresh Startafresh   £13,000 

Tonic Health  Dementia Care in Spalding   £21,264 

Tonic Health Safe Places   £23,960 

Volunteer and Contact Association V.C.A     £8,280 

YMCA Lincolnshire/The Nomad Trust 
Mental Health Support 
Worker 

  £25,000 

 
There are now a range of different activities which beneficiaries can choose from, 
although these are not available evenly across the whole county. Some examples 
of the types of activities are: 
 

 Physical Activities 

 Social Activities 

 Farm therapy 

 Mental Health Awareness Raising 

 Equine Assisted Learning 

 Outdoor activities 

 Help For Homeless People 
 
People are signposted to projects by SHINE and can be referred from mental 
health services following treatment with LPFT. 
 
  

Page 15



 

 

Figure 1 Geographic Distribution of Wave 7 MCN Projects 
 

 
 
During the 7 waves there have always been difficult decisions to make in order to 
ensure the monies available (£350,000) are used as efficiently and effectively as 
possible to support the aims of the Managed Care Network.   
 
The spread of activities across Lincolnshire has improved over the life of the 
Managed Care Network and there has been active encouragement of applications 
from certain areas of Lincolnshire (especially the East Coast) with some success.  
 
1.3 Prevalent Challenges  
 
More demand for funding than is available from the fund 
 
The total funded allocation for the Mental Health Promotion Fund is £350,000.  
This includes £50,000 allocated for Dementia projects specifically.  The total value 
of applications for this year (wave 7) was £1,200,000.  The fund was distributed 
between 26 of the total 82 applications.    56 applicants therefore did not receive 
funding.  Whilst working towards sustainable health and social care, as part of the 
Lincolnshire Sustainable Transformation Partnership, looking to support our 

Page 16



 

 

communities to develop, there may be an opportunity to connect with these 
community groups in an alternative way through the STP Programme of identifying 
potential assets in the local community and in collaboration with the STP NT work 
streams. 

 
Lack of understanding about limitations of funding (non-recurrent) 
 
The Mental Health Promotion Fund was initiated as a kick-starter fund, to support 
social enterprises and local community groups to fund innovative community 
solutions.  Although the fund is intended to be non-recurrent, supporting small 
projects to get started and prove their outcomes, before securing funding 
elsewhere; many projects re-apply for the same fund each year, failing to 
appreciate that further funding streams must be sourced.    

 
The Managed Care Network was not established to support sustainability in this 
sector.  Groups are encouraged through application to find a sustainable source. It 
is apparent that this is not undertaken in the majority of cases.   In order to support 
these valuable community groups there are three developments underway to 
provide accessible and low cost advice and guidance regarding sustainable 
funding. 
 
Covering the geography of Lincolnshire to ensure good access 
 
Given the geography of Lincolnshire, it has always been a challenge to ensure a 
good geographical spread of projects.  This has improved over time.  However it 
remains difficult to ensure coverage and there are instances where people have to 
travel to reach the activities, which for some people is difficult. 

 
1.4 Next steps 
 
Formal network events 
 
LPFT ran a network event to provide new and existing network members with the 
insight of public sector business professionals in sourcing and applying for future 
funding.  It is proposed that future local network events continue to support this as 
we look to self-sustainability of projects. 
 
Changes to the Mental Health Promotion Fund in the future 
Lincolnshire County Council has supported the Mental Health Promotion Fund for 
seven waves of activity.  There is a move to evolving the use of these funds over 
time to reflect changes in commissioning intentions and priorities for use of these 
types of funds. 
 
 
Health and Well Being Board 
 
The priorities for the Health and Well Being Board that emerge from the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment 2017 have now been set with mental health 
achieving prominence in this agenda.  The County Council may well wish to 
nuance the use of the funding to take forward collaborations in neighbourhoods 

Page 17



 

 

and communities to build capacity and resilience.  This may mean the focus of any 
future waves of the Managed Care Network may change. 
 
Future funding sources 
LPFT is working with beneficiaries to assist with identifying other funding sources 
to achieve sustainability in the organisations and projects.  Potential sources of 
funds are limited however some examples are given in the table below. 
 
 
1.5 Sources of funds for self-sustainability 
 

 

 
1.6 Plans to evaluate impact for wave 7 

 

 The service is currently reviewing processes and procedures and part of this 
evaluation is to look at how outcomes for individuals can be measured in a more 
objective way together with an evaluation of the network provide. 

 
 
2. Conclusion 
 
A further successful wave of the Mental Health Promotion Fund has been allocated 
to projects in wave 7.  LPFT welcomes being part of this collaboration with 
Lincolnshire County Council and this report is intended to share some of the 
successes and challenges associated with this work.  LPFT will continue to monitor 
the impact of the projects and report to Lincolnshire County Council as part of 
ongoing monitoring and reporting. 
 
 
 

Source 
Cost to 
apply 

Criteria/Conditions 

National 
Lottery’s Big 
Lottery Fund 

£0 

National Lottery Awards for all England £300 - 
£10,000 (ongoing).  Must be a registered charity, a 
constituted group or club, Community Interest 
Company (CIC), Social enterprise, school or statutory 
body. Can fund: equipment; one-off events; small 
capital projects; staff costs; training costs; transport; 
utilities/running costs; volunteer expenses 

Funding 
Central 
(Voluntary 
and 
community 
organisations 
only) 
 
(Gov.UK 
directed)  

Subscription 
as an 

individual 
(£50) or an 
organisation 
£100+VAT  
an annual 

income over 
£100,000. 

 

Dependent on funding stream/funder.  Many 
available for different reasons.  These may not 
support Lincolnshire’s local need. 
£18,000 average funding amount 

Crowd 
funding 

£0 
 Few limitations when within legal parameters. 

 Average amount £200 - £16,000 

Page 18



 

 

 
3. Consultation 
 
 

 

 

a) Policy Proofing Actions Required 
 

Not applicable 

 
 

 

4. Background Papers 
 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Jane Marshall, Director of Strategy and Performance 
(Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust) on behalf of Lorraine Graves, 
General Manager, Specialist Adult Services (Lincolnshire County Council), who 

can be contacted on 01522 553836 or Lorraine.Graves@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 19

mailto:Lorraine.Graves@lincolnshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod, 
Executive Director of Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 April 2018 

Subject: 
Adult Care and Community Wellbeing Quarter 3 
2017/18 Performance  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report presents performance against Council Business Plan targets for the 
Directorate as at the end of Quarter 3 2017/18.  It also continues the theme of a 
focused look at the performance of a function of the Directorate.  In this quarter 
the performance focus is on the health checks programme.  The programme is 
at the end of its current cycle and has over-performed during this time.  The 
focus on this is timely as the programme will shortly be re-commissioned. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

The Committee is requested to consider and comment on the Quarter 3 
performance and the performance focus on Healthchecks. 

 

 
1. Background 
 
The report continues the theme of performance reporting to the Committee in a 
concise report which a) focuses on performance in a specific area of work of the 
Directorate b) provides an overview of all measures.  This approach is with a view 
to ensure that performance across the wide remit of the Directorate area is 
understood and explored by the Committee.     
 
A summary of Quarter 3 performance across the full set of council business plan 
measures is attached at Appendix A to this report.   This gives the performance 
status of all Council Business Plan measures relevant to this Committee.  
  
It should be noted that three of the measures under the Carers commissioning 
strategy are dependent on a survey of carers experience.  There is a statutory 
requirement to undertake this survey every two years, however Lincolnshire 
County Council has run the survey locally in early 2018, with the intention of better 
understanding the experience of Carers in the county.  The results from this will be 
available in the Quarter 4 2017/18 performance report to the Committee.   
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



NHS Health Check – Performance Focus  
 
The NHS Health Check programme is one of the largest public health programmes 
in the world, with nearly five million people in England receiving an NHS Health 
Check since 2013. It offers preventative checks to people aged 40-74 years to 
assess their risk of vascular disease (heart disease, stroke, diabetes and kidney 
disease) followed on by appropriate management and intervention, Eligible people 
are invited for their health check every five years. People already on a cardio 
vascular disease (CVD) register are excluded from the programme as they are 
already being managed by primary care. 
 

Reducing avoidable premature mortality is a government priority. Through early 
identification and management of risk factors and early detection of disease, the 
NHS Health Check will help achieve the ambitions set out in ‘From evidence into 
action: opportunities to protect and improve the nation’s health’, the ‘NHS Five 
Year Forward View’ and the ‘Cardiovascular disease outcome strategy’. 
 
The NHS Health Check is mandatory for local authorities to provide for their eligible 
residents under the Health and Social Care Act 2012. There are mandatory 
guidelines for how the health check should be conducted.  The national 
programme includes a MDS (Minimum Data Set) that looks at over 100 pieces of 
patient information e.g. age, ethnicity, gender, BMI, blood pressure, cholesterol, 
family history of cardio vascular disease and any medications the patient is taking, 
to assess eligibility. The software also calculates the patient's risk score using the 
data already on their patient record and the data collected at the NHS Health 
Check assessment. 
 
Additional testing and clinical follow up, for example, where someone is identified 
as being at high risk of having or developing vascular disease, remains the 
responsibility of primary care and is funded through NHS England. 
 
Lincolnshire County Council has targets to meet of the number of patients to be 
invited and the percentage of those assessed. 100% of eligible residents are to 
have been invited by the end of each five year cycle and a continuous year on year 
improvement in uptake to be achieved. The programme is now in the fifth year of 
the first five year cycle and is meeting targets on numbers invited and increased 
uptake. 
 
How we compare against the National picture: 
 
The national picture shows that we continue to perform better than the national 
average for both people invited, people receiving their NHS Health Check and 
uptake of the offer. The following maps show that more areas nationally are 
performing well offering health checks but fewer are performing well for patients 
receiving a health check and uptake to the offer. Lincolnshire is doing better for all 
three. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Figure 1: People Invited for an NHS Health Check Cumulative 2013-2018:  
 

 
Data source: http://healthierlives.phe.org.uk/topic/nhs-health-check 

 
 
Figure 2: People Receiving an NHS Health Check Cumulative 2013-2018: 
 

 
Data source: http://healthierlives.phe.org.uk/topic/nhs-health-check 

 

 

 

Page 23

http://healthierlives.phe.org.uk/topic/nhs-health-check
http://healthierlives.phe.org.uk/topic/nhs-health-check


Figure 3: Uptake of the NHS Health Check Cumulative 2013-2018: 
 

 
Data source: http://healthierlives.phe.org.uk/topic/nhs-health-check 

 
At the end of this first five year cycle 100% of the eligible population should have 
been offered an invitation to attend for their NHS Health Check. In Lincolnshire we 
are on track to meet that target ahead of England and the East Midlands. Uptake to 
invitations is also higher than that of England and the East Midlands. 
 
 
Table 1: 2013-2018 (5 year cumulative) 
 

 England East Midlands Lincolnshire 

Offered NHS Health Check %  
(Invited) 
 

82.5 78 96.9 

Received NHS Health Check % 
(Uptake) 

48.4 54.7 60 

Data source: www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 24

http://healthierlives.phe.org.uk/topic/nhs-health-check
http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data


Table 2: Numbers of patients invited and assessed 
 

  
Data source: http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data/ 

 
 
Table 3: 2016/17 (Annual data) 
 

 England East Midlands Lincolnshire 

Offered NHS Health Check %  
(Invited) 
 

17 15.5 18.5 

Received NHS Health Check % 
(Uptake) 

49.9 58.1 67.9 

Data source: www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data 

 
How we compare against other Local Authorities in the East Midlands Cumulative 
2013-2018: 
 
The following table shows how well Lincolnshire is performing against England,  
East Midlands and neighbouring local authorities in the East Midlands. England is 
highlighted in amber. Those areas performing better are highlighted in green and 
those that are not performing as well are highlighted in red. 
 
Only Lincolnshire and Rutland are performing better than England for both invited 
and assessed, although Rutland population is just over 5% of Lincolnshire's. 
 

  

Total Eligible 
Population 

% Invited % Uptake 

England 15,503,796 82.5 48.4 

East Midlands 1,404,229 78 54.7 

Lincolnshire 207,739 96.9 60 

Derby 87,046 64.9 47 

Derbyshire 241,412 75.8 53.8 

Leicester 80,449 71.6 100 

Leicestershire 206,998 106.9 43.3 

Northamptonshire 217,304 73.9 50.8 

Nottingham 77,607 51.2 47.9 

Nottinghamshire 273,949 59.7 56.6 

Rutland 11,725 97.3 52.4 

Page 25

http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data/


Leicester reports an uptake of 100%. This has been queried and the reason for this 
is that the programme is run via verbal invitation but only invitations for those 
patients attending for their assessment are recorded. 
 
Leicestershire are showing as having invited 106.9% of their population. This is not 
an error and Lincolnshire will probably be in a similar position at the end of this 
year. Each year LAs confirm their total, five year, eligible population with PHE. This 
is then divided by five to give an annual baseline that LA budgets and providers 
can work to. The numbers fluctuate each year. If in year five the previous year's 
targets have been higher, then this can lead to an invitation over the five years of 
more than 100%. 
 
Patient case studies provided by  Lincolnshire GP practices 
 
Case Study A: 
 
'A patient first attended for her NHS Health Check in January 2016, following 
an opportunistic invitation by a nurse at a routine appointment. 
 
On attendance, she weighed 83.4kg, and had a BMI of 31.4kg/m2. This placed her 
in the obese category. She was given advice about what she could do to reduce 
this, and offered a referral to Weight Watchers for a free 12 week programme. 
However the patient declined this referral, saying she would prefer to attend the 
surgery which she was familiar with and receive support from the health care 
assistants.  
 
She was sent home with advice on a weight reducing diet, and increasing her daily 
exercise, although she did not think she would be able to accommodate much 
exercise due to her currently lifestyle and commitments.  
 
At her first weigh in, four weeks after her NHS Health Check, her weight was 
79.2kg, and her BMI had already reduced to 29.8kg/m2, meaning she was no 
longer classed as obese. With this success the patient was encouraged to continue 
and be supported by the practice staff. She continued to visit the practice every 
four weeks for a weight check and support.  
 
As of February 2017, our patient weighs 61.2kg and her BMI is now down to 23 
kg/m2. With the help of the practice team, and instigated by her NHS Health 
Check, this lady has lost a total of 22.2kg, which is 27% of her original body weight 
and she feels wonderful. Her lifestyle has changed for the better to incorporate 
healthier choices for her and her family.  
 
She continues to attend the surgery for monthly weigh-ins as she relies on the 
support given by the practice team in order to maintain her new healthier weight 
and lifestyle.'  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Case Study B: 
 
Picking up cases of diabetes; CKD [Chronic Kidney Disease] and 
hypertension is expected, but occasionally the NHS Healthy Check leads to a 
much more serious diagnosis: 
 
'A 57 year old man presented with an earache, he otherwise appeared fit and 
healthy. As he was in the eligible population for an NHS Health check he was 
verbally invited. The NHS Health Check states that cholesterol must be completed 
for everyone. Other bloods tests only need to be done when patients hit certain 
criteria, however, the majority of practices in Lincolnshire run a range of blood tests 
at this appointment.  
 
A blood test came back that raised major concern and the patient was admitted to 
hospital immediately. After further investigation a diagnosis of pancreatic cancer 
was made. 
 
The patient was completely asymptomatic and the cancer was picked up only 
because he was offered an NHS Health Check and related bloods' 
 
 

2. Conclusion 
 
The Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee is requested to consider 
and comment on the report and the Council Business Plan information shown in 
Appendix A.   
 
3. Consultation 

 
 
 

 
 

 

a)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

No 

b)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 
 

4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Q3 Adult care & Community Wellbeing Performance Summary 

 

5. Background Papers 
    
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Theo Jarratt, who can be contacted on 01522 555177 or 

theo.jarratt@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 27

mailto:theo.jarratt@lincolnshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Actual
Q3

Actual

Q3

Target

Year End

Forecast

Trend
vs. 

2016/17

CBP Alert
Target tolerance of

 +/- 5% pts

36.0% 35.7% 40.0% � Not achieved

59.7% 60.0% 55.0% � Achieved

1,941 1,690 2045 � Not achieved

- 755 700 - Exceeds 

89.4% 91.0% 85.0% � Achieved

S1 79% - 94%

S2 100% 100% 100% - ↔ Achieved

S3 14% 17% 16% - � Achieved

S4 79% 99% 65% - � Exceeds

SAS1 77% 75% 76% - � Achieved

SAS2 71% 69% 62% - � Exceeds

SAS3 48% 52% 48% - � Achieved

SAS4 88% 61% 63% 100% � Achieved

SAS5 78% - 81%

C1 81% 100% 85% - � Achieved

C2 7.4
out of 12

- 8.0
out of 12

C3 64% - 71%

C4 65% 67% 75% - � Not achieved

C5 59% - 66%

8,180 8,431 8,565 -

1,375 1,556 1,440

AF1 1,067      709 847           � Exceeds

AF2 59% n/a 67%

AF3 80% - 81%

AF4 34% 34% 28% 36 � Achieved

AF5 77% 59% 66% 84% � Not achieved

Not reported until Q4

Carers survey is being re-run locally - an outturn 

for this measure will be available in Q4 

Carers survey is being re-run locally - an outturn 

for this measure will be available in Q4

Carers survey is being re-run locally - an outturn 

for this measure will be available in Q4

Safeguarding

Not reported until Q4

% of concluded safeguarding enquiries where the person at risk lacks capacity 

where support was provided by an advocate, family or friend

% of safeguarding enquiries where the 'Source of Risk' is a service provider - 

i.e. social care support SAC SG3d

% of completed (and substantiated) safeguarding enquiries where the risk 

was reduced or removed

% of people who report that they feel safe ASCOF 4B

**SURVEY MEASURE**

% of learning disability clients who are 'very happy' with the care and support 

they receive ASCOF 3A **SURVEY MEASURE**

% of carers who have been included or consulted in discussions about the 

person they care for ASCOF 3C **SURVEY MEASURE**

Percentage of carers who receive a direct payment ASCOF 1C (2b)

% of people in receipt of long term support who have been reviewed in the 

period (learning disability, 18+ plus  mental health, 18-64)

Carer-reported quality of life ASCOF 1D **SURVEY MEASURE**

Carers

Not reported until Q4

Achieved�

In-year reporting in development

2017/18 Quarter 3 - Adult Care & Community Wellbeing Overview
Council Business Plan Measures 

Carers supported to delay the care and support for the person they care for

Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, aged 65+ 

ASCOF 2A(ii) numerator **Better Care Fund**

% of adults in contact with secondary mental health services living 

independently, with or without support ASCOF 1H

% of adults receiving long term social care support in the community that 

receive a direct payment (learning disability and mental health)

% of carers who find it easy to find information about services 

ASCOF 3D(ii) **SURVEY MEASURE**

% of requests for support for new clients, where the outcome was universal 

services/ signposted to other services

2017/182016/17

% of adults with a learning disability (or autism) who live in their own home or 

with their family ASCOF 1G

Specialist Adult Services

% of clients in receipt of long term support who receive a direct payment 

ASCOF 1C (2a) **AMENDED - now just Adult Frailty clients**

% of people in receipt of long term support who have been reviewed in the 

period **AMENDED - now just Adult Frailty clients**

% of people who report that they have control over their daily life 

ASCOF 1B **SURVEY MEASURE**

Adult Frailty & Long Term Conditions

Total number of carers (caring for Adults) supported in the last 12 months
C6

Above expressed as a rate per 100,000 population (18 to 64)

Older people supported by the Wellbeing Service to maintain their 

independence

Community Wellbeing 

% of alcohol users that left drug treatment successfully who do not re-

present to treatment within 6 months PHOF 2.15iii latest data Sept 2017

% of people aged 40 to 74 offered and received an NHS health check 

PHOF 2.22iv latest data Sept 2017

Chlamydia diagnoses per 100,000 15-24 year old PHOF 3.02
latest data June 2017

Number of Health and Social Care staff trained in Making Every 

Contact Count (MECC)

Page 29

julie.roebuck
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod, 
Executive Director of Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 April 2018 

Subject: NHS Health Checks Re-procurement 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This item invites the Adult Care and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
to consider a proposed decision on the re-procurement of the NHS Health 
Checks Programme, which is due to be considered by the Executive Councillor 
between 13 – 17 April 2018.  The views of the Scrutiny Committee will be 
reported to the Executive Councillor as part of her consideration of this item.   

 
 

Actions Required: 

(1) To consider the attached report and to determine whether the Committee 
supports the recommendation(s) to the Executive Councillor set out in 
the report.   

 
(2) To agree any additional comments to be passed to the Executive 

Councillor in relation to this item. 
 

 
1. Background
 
The Executive Councillor is due to consider the report on the re-procurement of the 
NHS Health Check programme between 13 – 17 April 2018.  The full report to the 
Executive Councillor is attached at Appendix 1 to this report.    
 
 
2. Conclusion
 
Following consideration of the attached report, the Committee is requested to 
consider whether it supports the recommendations in the report and whether it 
wishes to make any additional comments to the Executive Councillor.  The 
Committee’s views will be reported to the Executive Councillor.   
 
 
3. Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

Not applicable. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

 
Appendix 1 

 
Open Report on behalf of the Executive Director of Adult Care 
and Community Wellbeing to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children's Services in relation the NHS Health 
Checks Re-procurement. 
 

 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Philip Garner, Health Improvement Project Manager and 
Carl Miller, Commercial and Procurement Manager, who can be contacted on 
01522 552292 and 01522 553673 respectively. 

 
 
 

 

Page 32



APPENDIX 1 

 
Executive/Executive Councillor 

 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod, 
Executive Director for Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

  

Report to: 
Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and 
Children's Services 

Date: Between 13 – 17 April 2018 

Subject: NHS Health Checks Re-Procurement 

Decision Reference: I015439  

Key decision? Yes  

 

Summary:  

The NHS Health Checks Programme was procured in 2014 using an Open Select 
List restricted to GP Practices within Lincolnshire.  Each GP Practice on the list 
has an individual contract with the County Council. The contracts come to an end 
on 31 July 2018, subject to four month contract extensions being approved by 
Glen Garrod, the Executive Director for Adult Care and Community Wellbeing.  
 
Given the statutory obligation on the Council to provide the programme, the 
Council intends to re-commission the NHS Health Checks Programme and in 
doing so, advertise the opportunity to the wider market.  
 
This report gives an update on the proposed re-commissioning and seeks 
approval to proceed with the re-procurement.  
 

 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services: 
 
1. Approves the re-commissioning of NHS Health Check Programme with new 

contracts to take effect from 1 August 2018.  
 

2. Approves that a procurement exercise be undertaken to establish an Open 
Select List of providers to deliver NHS Health Checks according to the GP 
Practice Code Areas.   
 

3. Delegates to the Director of Public Health, in consultation with the Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services, the authority to 
determine the final form of the procurement, including the details of the 
contract, approval of the award and any other legal documentation 
necessary to give effect to the decision. 

 

 

Page 33



 

Alternatives Considered: 

1.    Do nothing. 

1.  This is not a viable option due to the obligation on Lincolnshire County 
Council to provide the NHS Health Checks pursuant to Section 12 Health and 
Social Care Act 2012. 

 
 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

This paper recommends that the NHS Health Check Programme be re-
commissioned on the basis that: 
 

 the provision of NHS Health Checks is a statutory duty and therefore the 
alternative option to not re-commission is not available to the Council; and 

 the value of the Programme means that is it subject to the Public Contracts 
Regulations.  

 
The recommendation to establish an Open Select List of Providers allows the 
Programme the flexibility it may require in the event that a Provider serves notice 
and the eligible population have to be re-allocated to an alternative Provider. This 
flexibility is particularly desirable in the current climate where there are increasing 
numbers of mergers between GP practices and increased use of Federations.    
 

 

Background  
 
1. Current Service  
 

1.1. Service Description 
 

The NHS Health Checks Programme is a preventative health service 
aiming to reduce incidences of vascular disease and premature 
mortality/morbidity. It offers preventative checks to people aged 40-74 
years to assess their risk of vascular disease (heart disease, stroke, 
diabetes and kidney disease) followed by appropriate management and 
intervention. The Programme runs on a five year cycle with each member 
of the eligible population being invited for a Health Check once every five 
years.  

 
1.2. Service Delivery 

 
The Programme was procured in 2014 using an Open Select List 
restricted to GP Practices within Lincolnshire. Each GP Practice on the 
List has an individual contract with the County Council.  
 
91 out of the 93 GP practices within Lincolnshire provide the Programme. 
The eligible population registered with one of the practices that has opted 

Page 34



out of delivering NHS Health Checks has been reallocated to a 
neighbouring Practice on the List. The eligible population of the other 
practice are not currently receiving NHS Health Checks and the 
re-procurement will address and resolve this situation.    

 
 

 

1.3. Current Performance 
 
1.3.1. Performance Targets for Invitation and Attendance 

 
Regulation 4(3) of Local Authorities (Public Health Functions and 
Entry to Premises by Local Healthwatch Representatives) 
Regulations 2013 prescribes a 100% invitation target, whereby each 
member of the eligible population must be invited for a Health Check 
Assessment within each relevant 5 year period.  
 
Whilst attendance rate targets are not similarly specified, there is an 
obligation on Local Authorities to have a view to securing continuous 
performance. To encourage improvement under the current contract, 
the County Council has applied tiered bonus payments for attendance 
rates of 60%, 65% and 70%.  

 
1.3.2 Current Performance 

 
The tables below demonstrate that Lincolnshire is performing very 
well when benchmarked against England and the East Midlands and 
is on track to meet the 100% invitation target by the end of the 
contract term.   

 
 

Table 1: 2013-2018 (5 year cumulative) 
 

 
England 

East 
Midlands 

Lincolnshire 

Offered NHS 
Health Check %  

(Invited) 
82.5 78.0 96.9 

Received NHS 
Health Check % 

(Uptake) 
48.4 54.7 60.0 

 
Data source: 
www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data 

 
 

Page 35

http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data


Table 2: Numbers of patients invited and assessed across 
Lincolnshire 2013-2018 

 

  
 

Data source: 
http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data/ 

 
 

Table 3: 2016/17 (Annual data) 
 

 
England 

East 
Midlands 

Lincolnshire 

Offered NHS Health 
Check % 
(Invited) 

17.0 15.5 18.5 

Received NHS 
Health Check % 

(Uptake) 
49.9 58.1 67.9 

 
Data source:   
 www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data  
        

  

38% of GP Practices received bonus payments in 2016/17, broken 
down as: 
 

 60% Target Payment: 5 Practices (6%) 

 65% Target Payment: 7 Practices (8%) 

 70% Target Payment: 23 Practices (26%). 
 

The use of bonus payments for achieving targets and other quality 
improvement actions have contributed to incremental improvements 
in performance over the life of the programme. The result of this 
quality improvement programme is that Lincolnshire County Council 
is in the top 10% best performing Councils in the country for Health 
Checks (15/152).   
 
 
 
 

 

Page 36

http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data/
http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/commissioners_and_providers/data


2. Statutory Duty to Deliver the Service 
  

Lincolnshire County Council is under a statutory duty to deliver the NHS Health 
Checks pursuant to Section 12 Health and Social Care Act 2012.  However, 
the delivery requirements are set out in Regulations 4 and 5 of Local 
Authorities (Public Health Functions and Entry to Premises by Local 
Healthwatch Representatives) Regulations 2013, including: 
 

 Specifying who is eligible for a Health Check (Regulations 4(2) 
and 4(5)) 

 The 100% invitation target (Regulation 4(3)) 

 The specified five year programme cycle (Regulation 4(4)) 

 The obligation to secure continuous improvement (Regulation 4(6)) 

 Minimum data set to be collected (Regulation 5(3)) 
 

3. Proposed Re-Commissioning 
 

3.1. Contract Commencement and Duration 
 

The current service contracts expire on 31 March 2018 with no option to 
further extend.  In accordance with the County Council's continuing 
statutory duty to deliver the NHS Health Check Programme, it is 
proposed the County Council re-commission the Programme and in 
order to maintain the 5 year programme cycle, the new contracts will 
need to cover the 5 year period 2018 - 2023. 
   

The new contracts will incorporate sufficient break provisions to enable 
the further review of the scope of services in the event that an 
opportunity arises to align the NHS Health Check contracts with other 
health prevention services during the 5 year period of 2018 – 2023.  
 

3.2 Contract Scope 
 

The Specification is largely prescribed by statute and national guidance 
and therefore will not materially change.  
 

3.3  Budget and Payment Structure 

The annual budget for the NHS Health Checks programme is currently 
£638,528. It is proposed that the budget remain the same, therefore the 
value of the 5 year contract will be £3,417,640.  This will come out of the 
dedicated Public Health Grant. The payment and performance structure 
will largely remain the same although engagement with providers is 
ongoing.  

 

3.4  Contract Structure 
 
It is proposed that the County Council procure the Programme via an 
Open Select List and individual contracts with the successful providers. 
This structure would allow flexibility in the event that a provider served 

Page 37



notice and an eligible population needed to be reallocated to an 
alternative provider.  

 

The tender opportunity will be open to all interested providers and not 
restricted to just GP Practices as previously.  However, the ability to 
access patient information and the requisite software makes it likely that 
applications will be limited to Health and Social Care Information Centre 
(HSCIC) accredited bodies such as GPs, pharmacies and Health Trusts 
or other providers who have separately negotiated information sharing 
agreements with GP practices.  

  

4. Legal Issues 
 

4.1 Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the 
exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*       Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*       Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*       Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; 
sex; and sexual orientation. 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity 
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*        Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to 
that characteristic 

*      Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of 
persons who do not share it. 

*       Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
to participate in public life or in any other activity in which 
participation by such persons is disproportionately low 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are 
different from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in 
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the 
need to tackle prejudice, and promote understanding 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some 
persons more favourably than others 

Page 38



The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-
maker.  To discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must 
analyse all the relevant material with the specific statutory obligations 
in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is identified consideration must be 
given to measures to avoid that impact as part of the decision making 
process. 

 

The current eligibility criteria is for an NHS Health Check under the 
Programme to be resident within Lincolnshire, aged between 40-74 
years and not already receiving treatment for cardio vascular disease 
(CVD) or on a CVD high risk register.  

The Impact Assessment for the new contract to be effective from 1 
August 2018 is attached at Appendix A. The Assessment concludes 
that there will be no adverse impact on individuals with protected 
characteristics as a result of the re-procurement. 
 
The contract that will be entered into will also contain clauses 
requiring the contractor to comply with the Equality Act. 
 

 

4.2 Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA and the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy 
(JHWS) in coming to a decision 

 

Promoting healthier lifestyles and improving the health and wellbeing 
of older people in Lincolnshire, are two of the five themes from the 
JHWS and the NHS Health Check Programme directly supports these 
themes.  

In 2016/17 42,000 people were invited to attend for their health check, 
68%, over 28,000, took up that offer of an assessment. The invitation 
is targeted at those people at highest risk, intervening to reduce their 
risk of developing cardio vascular disease in the future, through 
education and lifestyle services support, and capturing those with 
underlying disease who would otherwise be unaware of it until they 
began to feel ill. 

• One in every 56 people found with undiagnosed hypertension 

• One in every 131 people found with undiagnosed diabetes 

• One in every 12 people found to be at high risk of cardio 
vascular disease 

• One in every 10 people were offered a statin 

 

Page 39



4.3 Crime and Disorder 

 Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must 
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the 
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably 
can to prevent crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and 
other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment), the misuse 
of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its area and re-offending in 
its area. 

 

 
Alcohol misuse is explored with patients as part of an NHS Health 
Check and therefore the Programme contributes to a reduction of 
misuse and subsequent anti-social behaviour. 
 

 
 

 

Legal Comments: 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to provide the services referred to in the Report 
and power to deliver the services through the contract proposed. 
 
The recommendation is compliant with the Council's obligations under 
procurement law. 
 
The decision is consistent with the Policy Framework and within the remit of the 
Executive Councillor. 
 

 

Resource Comments: 
 
Finance can confirm there is a budget in 18/19 of £683,528 for Health Checks 
within the Public Health directorate. 
 
 
 
 

Consultation 
 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

     N/A 

 
b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

       Yes 
 
 

Page 40



 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

This report will be considered by the Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee on 11 April 2018 and the Committee's comments will be 
passed on to the Executive Councillor, Adult Care, Health and Children's 
Services. 
 

 
d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

      Yes 
 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

     See Appendix A. 

 
 
4. Appendices 
 

 

These are listed below and attached at the end of the report 
 
Appendix A – The Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 

No Background Papers were used in the preparation of this Report. 
 
 

This report was written by Philip Garner, Health Improvement Project Manager and 
Carl Miller, Commercial and Procurement Manager, who can be contacted on 
01522 552292 and 01522 553673 respectively. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        1 
 

 

  
Equality Impact Analysis to enable informed decisions 

 
The purpose of this document is to:- 

I. help decision makers fulfil their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and  
II. for you to evidence  the positive and adverse impacts of the proposed change on people with protected characteristics and ways to 

mitigate or eliminate any adverse impacts. 
 
Using this form 
This form must be updated and reviewed as your evidence on a proposal for a project/service change/policy/commissioning of a service or 
decommissioning of a service evolves taking into account any consultation feedback, significant changes to the proposals and data to support 
impacts of proposed changes. The key findings of the most up to date version of the Equality Impact Analysis must be explained in the report 
to the decision maker and the Equality Impact Analysis must be attached to the decision making report. 

 
**Please make sure you read the information below so that you understand what is required under the Equality Act 2010** 

 
Equality Act 2010 
The Equality Act 2010 applies to both our workforce and our customers. Under the Equality Act 2010, decision makers are under a personal 
duty, to have due (that is proportionate) regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics.  
 
Protected characteristics 
The protected characteristics under the Act are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; 
race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation. 
 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
Section 149 requires a public authority to have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by/or under the Act 
 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant protected characteristics and persons who do not share those 

characteristics                                           
 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

P
age 43



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        2 
 

 

  

The purpose of Section 149 is to get decision makers to consider the impact their decisions may or will have on those with protected 
characteristics and by evidencing the impacts on people with protected characteristics decision makers should be able to demonstrate 'due 
regard'. 
 
Decision makers duty under the Act 
Having had careful regard to the Equality Impact Analysis, and also the consultation responses, decision makers are under a personal duty to 
have due regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics (see above) and to:-     

(i) consider and analyse how the decision is likely to affect those with protected characteristics, in practical terms, 
(ii) remove any unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other prohibited conduct, 
(iii) consider whether practical steps should be taken to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences that the decision is likely to  have, for 

persons with protected characteristics and, indeed, to consider whether the decision should not be taken at all, in the interests of 
persons with protected characteristics, 

(iv)  consider whether steps should be taken to advance equality, foster good relations and generally promote the interests of persons with 
protected characteristics, either by varying the recommended decision or by taking some other decision. 

 

Conducting an Impact Analysis 
 

The Equality Impact Analysis is a process to identify the impact or likely impact a project, proposed service change, commissioning, 
decommissioning or policy will have on people with protected characteristics listed above. It should be considered at  the beginning of the 
decision making process. 
  
The Lead Officer responsibility  
This is the person writing the report for the decision maker. It is the responsibility of the Lead Officer to make sure that the Equality Impact 
Analysis is robust and proportionate to the decision being taken. 
 
Summary of findings 
You must provide a clear and concise summary of the key findings of this Equality Impact Analysis in the decision making report and attach 
this Equality Impact Analysis to the report.   

P
age 44



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        3 
 

 

  

Impact – definition 
 

An impact is an intentional or unintentional lasting consequence or significant change to people's lives brought about by an action or series of 
actions. 
 

How much detail to include?  
The Equality Impact Analysis should be proportionate to the impact of proposed change. In deciding this asking simple questions “Who might 
be affected by this decision?” "Which protected characteristics might be affected?" and “How might they be affected?”  will help you consider 
the extent to which you already have evidence, information and data, and where there are gaps that you will need to explore. Ensure the 
source and date of any existing data is referenced. 
You must consider both obvious and any less obvious impacts. Engaging with people with the protected characteristics will help you to identify 
less obvious impacts as these groups share their perspectives with you. 
 
A given proposal may have a positive impact on one or more protected characteristics and have an adverse impact on others. You must 
capture these differences in this form to help decision makers to arrive at a view as to where the balance of advantage or disadvantage lies. If 
an adverse impact is unavoidable then it must be clearly justified and recorded as such, with an explanation as to why no steps can be taken 
to avoid the impact. Consequences must be included. 

Proposals for more than one option If more than one option is being proposed you must ensure that the Equality Impact Analysis covers all 
options. Depending on the circumstances, it may be more appropriate to complete an Equality Impact Analysis for each option. 
 

The information you provide in this form must be sufficient to allow the decision maker to fulfil their role as above. You must include 
the latest version of the Equality Impact Analysis with the report to the decision maker. Please be aware that the information in this 

form must be able to stand up to legal challenge. 
 

P
age 45



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        4 
 

 

Title of the policy / project / service 
being considered  

Re-commission of the NHS Health Check 
programme 

Person / people completing analysis Sue Cecconii 

Service Area 
 

Health Improvement, Public Health Lead Officer Philip Garner 

Who is the decision maker? 
 

Glen Garrod How was the Equality Impact Analysis 
undertaken? 

Desk Based – review of 2016/17 user 
data 

Date of meeting when decision will 
be made 

24/01/2018 Version control 0.3 

Is this proposed change to an 
existing policy/service/project or is 
it new? 

Existing policy/service/project LCC directly delivered, commissioned, 
re-commissioned or de-
commissioned? 

Commissioned 

Describe the proposed change 
 
 
 

The Lincolnshire County Council's NHS Health Check programme is a national exemplar offering over 42,000 people each year, 
aged 40-74, a preventative check to assess their risk of vascular disease. Since 2013/14 over 200,000 people have been invited 
and more than 120,000 people have been assessed. 
Vascular diseases are the biggest cause of death in the UK, and the NHS Health Check programme in England could on average 
prevent 1,600 heart attacks and strokes and save at least 650 lives each year. The vascular checks programme could prevent 
over 4,000 people a year from developing diabetes and detect at least 20,000 cases of diabetes or kidney disease earlier, 
allowing individuals to be better managed and improve their quality of life - Putting Prevention First, Vascular Checks: Risk 
Assessment and Management 
The NHS Health Check remains a government priority. It is one of the largest public health programmes in the world and is 
mandatory for local authorities to provide for their eligible residents. (Health and Social Care Act 2012) The service needs to be 
re-commissioned, as it is a statutory duty. It will remain in its current format. 
More information can be found in the annual report:    

Background Information 
 

P
age 46



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        5 
 

 

 

P
age 47



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Evidencing the impacts 
In this section you will explain the difference that proposed changes are likely to make on people with protected characteristics. 
To help you do this  first consider the impacts the proposed changes may have on people without protected characteristics before then 
considering the impacts the proposed changes may have on people with protected characteristics. 
 
You must evidence here who will benefit and how they will benefit. If there are no benefits that you can identify please state 'No 
perceived benefit' under the relevant protected characteristic. You can add sub categories under the protected characteristics to make 
clear the impacts. For example under Age you may have considered the impact on 0-5 year olds or people aged 65 and over, under 
Race you may have considered Eastern European migrants, under Sex you may have considered specific impacts on men. 
 
Data to support impacts of proposed changes  
When considering the equality impact of a decision it is important to know who the people are that will be affected by any change. 
 
Population data and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
The Lincolnshire Research Observatory (LRO) holds a range of population data by the protected characteristics. This can help put a 
decision into context. Visit the LRO website and its population theme page by following this link: http://www.research-lincs.org.uk  If you 
cannot find what you are looking for, or need more information, please contact the LRO team. You will also find information about the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on the LRO website. 
 
Workforce profiles 
You can obtain information by many of the protected characteristics for the Council's workforce and comparisons with the labour market 
on the Council's website.  As of 1st April 2015, managers can obtain workforce profile data by the protected characteristics for their 
specific areas using Agresso. 

P
age 48

http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/residents/community-and-living/equality-and-diversity/a-strategic-approach-equality-and-diversity/valuing-our-workforce/community-and-workforce-statistics/52342.article


 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        7 
 

 

 

 

Age Evidence: 
 
The NHS Health Check programme is one of the largest public health programmes in the world, with nearly 5 million 
people in England receiving an NHS Health Check since 2013. 
 
The NHS Health Check programme  offers preventative checks to people aged 40-74 years to assess their risk of vascular 
disease (heart disease, stroke, diabetes and kidney disease) followed by appropriate management and intervention, e.g. 
medical intervention and/or referral and signposting to lifestyle services. Eligible people are invited for their health check 
every 5 years. People already on a cardio vascular disease (CVD) register are excluded from the programme as they are 
already being managed by primary care. 
 
In Lincolnshire, those at most risk are invited for their health check first, in line with National guidance. Risk is calculated 
by a software risk tool which uses indicators such as age, gender, BMI, family history of vascular disease, previous blood 
pressure and cholesterol measurements to give a risk percentage. Risk increases with age. 
 
Age/Gender invitation and assessment 
 

  
Offered 

Health Check 

Health 
Check 
Done 

Percentage 
Uptake 

TOTAL PATIENTS 42770 29649 69 

FEMALE 21566 16021 74 

MALE 21204 13628 64 

FEMALE Age 40 - 44 4548 2723 60 

FEMALE Age 45 - 49 3394 2637 78 

FEMALE Age 50 - 54 3732 2876 77 

FEMALE Age 55 - 59 3249 2408 74 

FEMALE Age 60 - 64 2144 1739 81 

FEMALE Age 65 - 69 2013 1638 81 

FEMALE Age 70 - 74 2149 1687 79 

Positive impacts 
The proposed change may have the following positive impacts on persons with protected characteristics – If no positive impact, please state 
'no positive impact'. 
 

P
age 49



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        8 
 

FEMALE Age 75+ 337 313 93 

MALE Age 40 - 44 4467 2058 46 

MALE Age 45 - 49 2898 1954 67 

MALE Age 50 - 54 3093 2126 69 

MALE Age 55 - 59 3230 1968 61 

MALE Age 60 - 64 2828 1826 65 

MALE Age 65 - 69 2477 1903 77 

MALE Age 70 - 74 2007 1582 79 

MALE Age 75+ 204 211 103 

 
The average uptake in Lincolnshire is higher than England and East Midlands averages. The uptake for younger patients is 
lower than that for older patients. Practices contact patients on three separate occasions and it is audited annually that 
they are using different invitation methods so the patient can be best engaged. We encourage practices to offer evening 
and/or weekend appointments so that younger working patients have more opportunity to attend. In 2015 funding was 
agreed for some practices to purchase a centrifuge so that patient blood sample could be spun and stored on site, 
awaiting laboratory pick up, enabling the practices to open up their range of appointment times. 
 
Ensuring that engagement is high and improving for all age groups offers the best outcomes for all regarding having the 
opportunity to detect otherwise undiagnosed underlying disease and help patients to reduce their CVD risk and improve 
lifestyles. 
 

Disability Evidence: 
 
The NHS Health Check programme does not discriminate based on disability, physical or learning. All patients aged 40-74 
who are not currently on a CVD register, so already receiving treatment, will receive and invitation to attend for their 
assessment. 
 
The health check programme aligns with other health checks, such as the Learning Disabilities health check, meaning 
patients can have fewer appointments to attend and get the greatest benefit from those that they do.  This also makes 
make best use of practice time. Work with the practices has been underway since 2015/16, setting up alerts on their 
clinical systems so that appointments can be combined and this advice is reiterated at their annual audit and the use of 
patient alerts checked.  
 
 
 

P
age 50



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        9 
 

Gender reassignment Evidence: 
 
No positive impact 
) 

Marriage and civil partnership Evidence: 
 
No positive impact 
 
 

Pregnancy and maternity Evidence: 
 
No positive impact 
) 

Race Evidence: 
 
The NHS Health Check programme does not discriminate. All patients aged 40-74 who are not currently on a CVD register, 
so already receiving treatment, will receive an invitation to attend for their assessment. 
 
Table 3: Gender Ethnicity invitation and assessment 
 

Coverage & Uptake (01 April 2016 to 
31 March 2017)    

  
Offered Health 

Check 

Health 
Check 
Done 

Percentage 
Uptake 

FEMALE A - British 16681 13698 82 

FEMALE B - Irish 55 45 82 

FEMALE C - Any other white back-ground 1935 1344 69 

FEMALE D - White and Black Caribbean 14 9 64 

FEMALE E -  White and Black African 18 13 72 

FEMALE F -  White and Asian 21 22 105 

FEMALE G -  Any other mixed back-ground 29 29 100 

FEMALE H - Indian 62 39 63 

FEMALE J  - Pakistani 3 2 67 

FEMALE K - Bangladeshi 5 7 140 

P
age 51



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        10 
 

FEMALE L -  Any other Asian back-ground 62 53 85 

FEMALE M - Caribbean 12 6 50 

FEMALE N - African 28 29 104 

FEMALE P - Any other black back-ground 14 12 86 

FEMALE R - Chinese 57 49 86 

FEMALE S -  Any other ethnic group 187 108 58 

FEMALE Z - Not stated (High level code) 413 255 62 

FEMALE ZZ - No Code Recorded 0 0 0 

FEMALE ZZZ-Unmapped Ethnicity Codes 1970 301 15 

MALE A - British 15328 11640 76 

MALE B - Irish 56 41 73 

MALE C - Any other white back-ground 1933 1119 58 

MALE D - White and Black Caribbean 5 4 80 

MALE E -  White and Black African 24 13 54 

MALE F -  White and Asian 23 13 57 

MALE G -  Any other mixed back-ground 24 13 54 

MALE H - Indian 64 43 67 

MALE J  - Pakistani 4 0 0 

MALE K - Bangladeshi 22 6 27 

MALE L -  Any other Asian back-ground 46 32 70 

MALE M - Caribbean 7 5 71 

MALE N - African 29 16 55 

MALE P - Any other black back-ground 15 7 47 

MALE R - Chinese 35 28 80 

MALE S -  Any other ethnic group 185 82 44 

MALE Z - Not stated (High level code) 483 237 49 

MALE ZZ - No Code Recorded 0 0 0 

MALE ZZZ-Unmapped Ethnicity Codes 2921 329 11 

 
People from Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, Other Asian and Chinese ethnicity categories are included at BMI 27.5 or over 
whereas individuals from other ethnicity categories are included in the filter at BMI 30 or over. This is due to the fact that 
people from  Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, Other Asian and Chinese ethnicity categories are more prone to diabetes at a 
lower BMI. 
 
The data shows the numbers in the table are small across the majority of categories, any data inaccuracies will be 
exaggerated meaning that drawing conclusions regarding the comparative uptake of ethnicities is not possible. 
 

P
age 52



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        11 
 

Religion or belief  Evidence: 
 
No positive impact 
 

Sex Evidence: 
 
The NHS Health Check programme does not discriminate. All patients aged 40-74 who are not currently on a CVD register, 
so already receiving treatment, will receive and invitation to attend for their assessment. 
 
Gender invitation and assessment 
 

Coverage & Uptake (01 
April 2016 to 31 March 
2017) 

   

  
Offered Health 

Check 
Health Check 

Done 
Percentage 

Uptake 

TOTAL PATIENTS 42770 29649 69 

FEMALE 21566 16021 74 

MALE 21204 13628 64 

 
There is no nationally reported data on the gender split for uptake for the NHS Health Check. However, it is well 
documented that women are more likely to take up the offer of health care services than men across the NHS. In 
Lincolnshire the uptake for men (64%) and women (74%) in 2016/17 was higher than the national uptake (49.9%). The 
uptake in Lincolnshire for both genders continues to increase and this is monitored.  
 
The gender difference in uptake has been investigated where practices with high uptake rates for men, in particular where 
their uptake rates for men were even higher than for women, were asked if they were doing anything differently so that 
this could be documented. Each practice said that they didn’t treat the invitation of men differently from the invitation of 
women, even where the uptake for men has higher than the uptake for women. The feedback we received to increase 
uptake for both genders was the same in each high achieving practice:  A well-managed invitation system where different 
methods were used: letter; verbal; phone calls and in some cases using text where available and this best practice is 
shared.  
 
Ensuring that engagement is high for both men and women offers the best outcomes for both sexes regarding having the 

P
age 53



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        12 
 

opportunity to detect otherwise undiagnosed underlying disease and help patients to reduce their CVD risk and improve 
their lifestyles. 
 

Sexual orientation Evidence: 
 
No positive impact 
 
 

 

 

If you have identified positive impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics in the Equality Act 
2010 you can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision. 
Health Inequalities  
 
Uptake is lowest for both men and women in the more deprived quintiles and increases in the more affluent quintiles.   
  
              Male % Uptake    Female % Uptake 
Quintile 1 48.7               57.5 
Quintile 2 51               62.7 
Quintile 3 63.8               73.5 
Quintile 4 71.1               78.2 
Quintile 5 69.8               79.5 
 
Uptake to a verbal invitation is high across all 5 quintiles, but is particularly evident for the more deprived quintiles, where their response to other invitation methods is 
much less successful in engaging with them but response is high for verbal invitations. For example for the most deprived quintile 1, the uptake to a first letter invitation 
is 28.9% whereas the uptake for the last deprived quintile 5 is 43.2%. The difference in uptake practically disappears when the invitation is verbal, a face to face 
conversation at the patients GP practice, quintile 1 uptake is 68.3% and quintile 5 is 70% 
 
The average uptake for England in 2016/17 was 49.9%. This is only just higher, by 1.2%, than our lowest uptake for men in the lowest quintile.  However, we have added 
patient alerts to all GP practice systems (via our relationship with Arden GEM) so that practice staff know who to ask to make an NHS Health Check appointment. 
Practices continuing to increasing verbal invitations will help to increase uptake rates across all quintiles. 
 
Ensuring that engagement is good and improving for the more deprived areas offers the best outcomes regarding having the opportunity to detect otherwise 
undiagnosed underlying disease and help patients to reduce their CVD risk and improve their lifestyles. 

P
age 54



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        13 
 

 
 
 

P
age 55



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Age No perceived adverse impact 

Disability No perceived adverse impact 

Gender reassignment No perceived adverse impact 

Marriage and civil partnership No perceived adverse impact 

Pregnancy and maternity No perceived adverse impact 

Negative impacts of the proposed change and practical steps to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences on people with 
protected characteristics are detailed below. If you have not identified any mitigating action to reduce an adverse impact please 
state 'No mitigating action identified'. 
 

Adverse/negative impacts  
You must evidence how people with protected characteristics will be adversely impacted and any proposed mitigation to reduce or eliminate 
adverse impacts. An adverse impact causes disadvantage or exclusion. If such an impact is identified please state how, as far as possible, it 
is justified; eliminated; minimised or counter balanced by other measures.  
If there are no adverse impacts that you can identify please state 'No perceived adverse impact' under the relevant protected characteristic. 
 

P
age 56



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        15 
 

Race No perceived adverse impact 

Religion or belief No perceived adverse impact 

Sex No perceived adverse impact 

Sexual orientation No perceived adverse impact 

 

If you have identified negative impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 you 
can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision. 
 

P
age 57



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        16 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Objective(s) of the EIA consultation/engagement activity 
 
 To understand the impact that the Lincolnshire NHS Health Check has on the patient attending for their assessment.  

Stakeholders 

Stake holders are people or groups who may be directly affected (primary stakeholders) and indirectly affected (secondary stakeholders) 

You must evidence here who you involved in gathering your evidence about benefits, adverse impacts and practical steps to mitigate or avoid 
any adverse consequences. You must be confident that any engagement was meaningful. The Community engagement team can help you to 
do this and you can contact them at consultation@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
State clearly what (if any) consultation or engagement activity took place by stating who you involved when compiling this EIA under the 
protected characteristics. Include organisations you invited and organisations who attended, the date(s) they were involved and method of 
involvement i.e. Equality Impact Analysis workshop/email/telephone conversation/meeting/consultation. State clearly the objectives of the EIA 
consultation and findings from the EIA consultation under each of the protected characteristics. If you have not covered any of the protected 
characteristics please state the reasons why they were not consulted/engaged.  
 

P
age 58

mailto:consultation@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        17 
 

 

 

 

Age This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Disability This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Gender reassignment This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Marriage and civil partnership This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Pregnancy and maternity This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Race This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Religion or belief This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Who was involved in the EIA consultation/engagement activity? Detail any findings identified by the protected characteristic 

P
age 59



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        18 
 

Sex This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Sexual orientation This was a desk exercise and people from this protected characteristic have not been approached. The software available 
that runs on GP clinical systems enables us access to all of the anonymised data required by the programme. 

Are you confident that everyone who 
should have been involved in producing 
this version of the Equality Impact 
Analysis has been involved in a 
meaningful way? 
The purpose is to make sure you have got 
the perspective of all the protected 
characteristics. 

The NHS Health Check is a nationally directed programme. The programme adheres to the national service specification. As 
this is a continuation of service, with no reduction in provision planned, we are confident that a desk top exercise is 
sufficient, however if  in future years LCC looked to add additional elements or reduce the provision then the community 
engagement team would be involved. 

Once the changes have been 
implemented how will you undertake 
evaluation of the benefits and how 
effective the actions to reduce adverse 
impacts have been? 

No change to implement at this time. 
 

P
age 60



 
Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12        19 
 

 

 

 

Are you handling personal data?  No 
 
If yes, please give details. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Actions required 
Include any actions identified in this 
analysis for on-going monitoring of 
impacts. 

Action Lead officer Timescale 

No action required Philip Garner  

Signed off by 

 

Date 12/03/2018 

 

 

Further Details 

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Policy and Scrutiny 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills,  
Director Responsible for Democratic Services 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 April 2018 

Subject: 
Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This item enables the Committee to consider its work programme, which is 
reviewed at each meeting.  Members of the Committee are encouraged to 
highlight items that could be included for consideration.  
 
 

Actions Required: 

The Committee is invited to review, consider and comment on the work 
programme; and highlight any additional scrutiny activity which could be 
included for consideration in the work programme. 
 
In particular, the Committee is requested to focus on the arrangements for the 
July meeting, including the venue and the items to be considered. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
Today's Work Programme 
 
Set out below are the items on the Committee's agenda today: -  

 

11 April 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Lincolnshire's Managed Care Network 
for Mental Health 

Jane Marshall, Director of Strategy, 
Lincolnshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Lorraine Graves, General Manager, 
Specialist Adult Services, Lincolnshire 
County Council. 

Shared Lives Re-Procurement 
(Pre-Decision Scrutiny – Decision Dates: 
13-17 April 2018)  

Justin Hackney, Assistant Director,  
Specialist Adult Services. 

Carl Miller, Commercial and 
Procurement Manager – People 
Services 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



11 April 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 
Quarter 3 Performance  

Theo Jarratt, County Manager, 
Performance Quality and Information 

Health Check Programme 
Re-Procurement (Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
– Decision Date:  13-17 April 2018) 

David Stacey, Programme Manager, 
Strategy and Performance, Adult Care 
and Community Wellbeing  

 

Robin Bellamy, Wellbeing 
Commissioning Manager, Adult Care 
and Community Wellbeing 

 

Carl Miller, Commercial and 
Procurement Manager – People 
Services 

 
Future Work Programme 

 
The plans for the Committee's future work programme are set out below: -  

 

 

30 May 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Home Care Survey Outcomes 
Carolyn Nice, Assistant Director, Adult 
Frailty and Long Term Conditions 

2017/18 Adult Care and Community 
Wellbeing Quarter 4 Performance  

Theo Jarratt, County Manager, 
Performance Quality and Information 

Adult Care and Community Wellbeing - 
Budget Outturn 2017-18 

Steve Houchin, Head of Finance, Adult 
Care and Community Wellbeing 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards 
Scrutiny Sub-Group Minutes  - 16 April 
2018, including report of Sub Group's 
consideration of: 

 LSAB – Peer Challenge Report of 
the LGA and the Response 

 Thematic Review of Financial 
Exploitation 

Democratic Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 
 

4 July 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Annual Report of the Director of Public 
Health 

Derek Ward, Director of Public Health 

Presentation by Director of Public Health Derek Ward, Director of Public Health 

Winter Planning 2018/19 To be confirmed. 

Local Government Association: High 
Impact Model 

To be confirmed. 

Community Hospitals  - Making the Most 
of the Sites and Facilities  

To be confirmed.   

 
On 14 February 2018, the Committee suggested that it hold its 4 July meeting in 
Skegness, and potentially combine this with a visit to an extra care facility.  Whilst 
holding a meeting in Skegness is a possibility, any visits arranged to extra care 
facilities would be limited to three or four councillors.  In addition, since the meeting 
on 14 February, other items have been added to the list of items for this meeting.  
The Committee is requested to consider whether it would wish to hold the meeting 
on 4 July in Skegness.      

 

5 September 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Adult Care and Community Wellbeing - 
Budget Monitoring 2018-19 

Steve Houchin, Head of Finance, Adult 
Care and Community Wellbeing 

Quarter 1 Performance Report 
Theo Jarratt, County Manager, 
Performance Quality and Information 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards 
Scrutiny Sub-Group Minutes  - 9 July 
2018 

Democratic Services 

 
 

10 October 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Mosaic Update 
Emma Scarth, Strategic Programme 
Lead for Mosaic  

Government Green Paper on Care and 
Support for Older People 

To be confirmed.   

 

Page 65



 
 
 
 
 
 

28 November 2018 – 10.00am  

Item Contributor(s) 

Wellbeing Service – Update Report, 
including: Telecare 

Robin Bellamy, Wellbeing 
Commissioning Manager, Adult Care 
and Community Wellbeing 

Quarter 2 Performance Report 
Theo Jarratt, County Manager, 
Performance Quality and Information 

Adult Care and Community Wellbeing - 
Budget Monitoring 2018-19 

Steve Houchin, Head of Finance, Adult 
Care and Community Wellbeing 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards 
Scrutiny Sub-Group Minutes  - October 
2018 

Democratic Services 

 
 

Potential Items for Inclusion in Work Programme 
 

 Transforming Care – Learning Disabilities.   

 National Carers Strategy  

 Joint Commissioning Arrangements.  

 Telehealth – NHS Provision 

 Health Promotion 

 Alcohol Harm and Substance Misuse Services 
 

Executive Forward Plan 
 
Set out in Appendix A to this report are the proposed decisions in the Executive's 
forward plan, which relate to the remit of this Committee.  
 
Items Previously Considered by the Committee  
 
A schedule of items previously considered by the Scrutiny Committee is set out in 
Appendix B.  

 

2. Conclusion
 
Members of the Committee are invited to review, consider and comment on the 
work programme and highlight for discussion any additional scrutiny activity which 
could be included for consideration in the work programme.   
 
 

Page 66



 
3. Consultation 

 
a)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? - Not Applicable 
b)  Risks and Impact Analysis - Not Applicable 
 
 
4. Appendices – These are listed below and set out at the conclusion of this report.  
 

Appendix A Forward Plan of Decisions within the Remit of the Adults and 
Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee.  

Appendix B Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee – Items 
Previously Considered 

 
 
5. Background Papers - No background papers within Section 100D of the Local 

Government Act 1972 were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, who can be 
contacted on 01522 553607 or by e-mail at Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 67

mailto:Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk


  

APPENDIX A 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF DECISIONS WITHIN THE REMIT OF THE ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

From 1 April 2018 
 

 

DEC 
REF 

MATTERS 
FOR DECISION 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION 
MAKER 

PEOPLE/GROUPS 
CONSULTED PRIOR 

TO DECISION 

HOW TO COMMENT 
ON THE DECISION 

BEFORE IT IS MADE 
AND THE DATE BY 
WHICH COMMENTS 
MUST BE RECEIVED 

RESPONSIBLE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
AND CHIEF OFFICER 

KEY       
DECISION 
YES/NO 

DIVISIONS 
AFFECTED 

I015439 

NHS Health 
Check Re-
Commission 

Between 
13 April 

2018 and 
17 April 

2018 

Executive 
Councillor: 
Adult 
Care, 
Health 
and 
Children's 
Services 

Public Health SMT; 
Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing 
Executive DMT; 
Commissioning and 
Commercial Board; 
Adults and Community 
Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 

Commercial and Procurement 
Manager 
Tel: 01522 553673 
Email: 
Carl.Miller@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Executive Councillor: Adult 
Care, Health and 
Children's Services and 
Executive Director of 
Children's Service  
 

Yes All  

I015180 

Shared Lives 
Services – 
Re Procurement 

Between 
13 April 

2018 and 
17 April 

2018 

Executive 
Councillor: 
Adult 
Care, 
Health 
and 
Children's 
Services 

Adults and Community 
Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 

Commercial and Procurement 
Officer- People Services 
Tel: 01522 553658 
e-mail: 
Reena.Fehnert@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Executive Councillor: Adult 
Care, Health and 
Children's Services and 
Executive Director of 
Children's Service  
 

Yes All 

 

 

P
age 68

mailto:Carl.Miller@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Reena.Fehnert@lincolnshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX B  

 

ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

ITEMS PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED 
 

 

 2017 2018 

 1
5
 J

u
n

e
 

2
6
 J

u
ly

 

6
 S

e
p
t 

2
9
 N

o
v
 

1
0
 J

a
n

 

1
4
 F

e
b

 

1
1
 A

p
r 

3
0
 M

a
y
 

4
 J

u
ly

 

5
 S

e
p
t 

1
0
 O

c
t 

2
8
 N

o
v
 

Adult Care and Community 
Wellbeing Introduction 

            

Better Care Fund             
Care Quality Commission Update             
Contract Management and 
Procurement 

            

Domestic Abuse Services             
Extra Care Housing             
IT Updates             
Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment 

            

Local Account 2016-17             
Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman Report              

Residential and Nursing Care Fee 
Levels 

            

Stop Smoking Service             
Strategic Market Support Partner             
Supported Housing             

Standard Items             
Budget Items             
Performance Reports             
Safeguarding Boards Sub Group             

 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 February 2018
	5 Lincolnshire's Managed Care Network for Mental Health
	7 Adult Care and Community Wellbeing Quarter 3 2017/18 Performance
	Appendix A

	8 NHS Health Checks Re-procurement
	Appendix A

	9 Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Work Programme



